
 

Environmental Advisory                                Lower Saucon Township                                                May 8, 2012  

Council                                                                          Minutes                                                                   7:00 PM 

 

 

I. OPENING 

 

CALL TO ORDER:  The Environmental Advisory Council meeting of Lower Saucon Township was 

called to order on Tuesday, May 8, 2012 at 7:05 P.M., at 3700 Old Philadelphia Pike, Bethlehem, PA, with 

Sandra Yerger, Chairman, presiding.   

   

 ROLL CALL:   
 Members:  Chair, Sandra Yerger; Ted Beardsley and Allan Johnson.  Laura Ray arrived at 7:07 pm.  

Absent – Tom Maxfield, Colin Guerra and Tom McCormick.    Associate Members:   Dru Germanoski 

and Hazem Hijazi.  Absent – Glenn Kaye.   Planner:  Karen Mallo – Absent; Hellertown Liaison:  Absent 

– Terry Boos;  Jr. Council Member:  Vacant. 

  

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 

II. OPEN SPACE SUB-COMMITTEE 
 

A. PRESERVATION MAP OF TARGETED LANDOWNERS 

 

Mrs. Yerger said Laura Baird went through the list of some of the information we had.  She also 

went through it by size of parcels and started looking at contiguousness of parcels and what makes 

sense.  These are some of the largest properties she actually came up with, and also a map of them.  

She doesn’t think that Ms. Baird realized some of these are on Applebutter Road and are owned by 

the City of Bethlehem, so they are not worthwhile.  She went by parcel size.   

 

Mrs. Yerger said if you look at No. 9, the Chuck property, she bumped into Terry Clemons on 

Saturday at a conference and Mr. Benner is buying it.  So Mr. Clemons launched into a 

conversation with him, and Mr. Benner actually looked like he was listening to Mr. Clemons.  Mr. 

Clemons will continue to talk to Mr. Benner.  Mr. Germanoski said to get a big contiguous piece 

like that would be remarkable.   

 

Mrs. Yerger said No. 6, Alexander Patullo, that’s the golf course.  He at one point was considering 

selling it, but there is a subdivision plan on the books which isn’t completely approved, but it was 

proposed.   

 

Mrs. Yerger said if you look at the ones on Lower Saucon Road, those are large parcels.  No. 14 is 

Pektor’s.  They are in his family.  They are farm fields right now.  No. 13, 14 and 15 are farmland.  

Mr. Hijazi said do you think he may be interested?  Mrs. Yerger said he may.  Lou did approach us 

at one time about a potential subdivision there.  David Spirk said Lou’s brother and mother also 

own some.  Mrs. Yerger said she thinks his nephew actually farms it.  It’s right across the street 

from where she lives.   

 

Mrs. Yerger said No. 16 is the Bilous property, which has access issues, but again it would be a 

really nice chunk.   

 

Mrs. Yerger said that’s pretty much the larger parcels in the Township that have large chunks and 

are contiguous.  That doesn’t preclude that we wouldn’t look at other parcels.   

 

Mr. Johnson said there’s another parcel that is surrounded by the Dravecz property on three sides.  

Mrs. Yerger said that may be the one they looked at and then they put it on the market.  It’s owned 

by a man named Kipp or Petco.  It’s unlikely we could get a conservation easement on it, but it 

would be a good idea to look into it and see if he would sell it.   

 



Environmental Advisory Council 

May 8, 2012  

 

Page 2 of 11 

Mr. Hijazi said what about the properties behind Hellertown Borough?  Mrs. Yerger said some are 

owned by the school and there’s the Polk Valley Park.  One of these plots is owned by the 

cemetery yet.   

 

Mrs. Yerger said No. 19, 20, 21 and 22 are all headwater areas of Cooks, down by Silver Creek.  

It’s something to give some thought to.   

 

Mrs. Yerger said Ms. Baird was looking to see if anyone had any suggestions or is there anyone we 

wanted to talk to or for her to talk to.  Petrie has access issues.  Ms. Ray said it would probably be 

nice to have one more version of the map for lands that are already preserved and have an 

easement.  Mrs. Yerger said she was talking about doing another layer/color on the map.  She can 

ask her to do that, and it would be helpful.   

 

Mr. Johnson said ask Mr. Baird to look into the property surrounding the Dravecz property.  Mrs. 

Yerger said okay.  Mr. Hijazi said it looks like a Panko owns it.  Mr. Johnson said there’s a 

possibility he wouldn’t do a conservation easement, but he might sell it.  Mrs. Yerger said she 

thinks she may have talked to the owner and it’s on the market, but she will have Ms. Baird look at 

it.  Take a look at the list and map, and email Mrs. Yerger if you have any thoughts or suggestions. 

 

B. PROPERTY UPDATES 

 

Mrs. Yerger said the Benner property was settled on last Friday.  It’s a 78-acre former dairy farm 

that is permanently preserved.  If you have your maps, it’s No. 10 on the map.   

 

Mr. Beardsley said Rich Marson is having his attorney review documents for him.   

 

III. NEW BUSINESS 

 

A. SVSD ENVIRONMENTAL EDUCATION CENTER EVENT – DAVE SPIRK 

 

Mr. Spirk said he has some updated preliminary plans.  This is the Environmental Education Center 

(EEC).  Just to get you oriented, Polk Valley Road is on the right side of the map and you just 

come out at the turn on the bottom of the map and the Polk Valley Park is off the map on the 

bottom.  As we’re heading north on Polk Valley Road, the school is in front of you.  As we’re 

passing the entry to the EEC, we’re also looking off to the left is the baseball field. Everything on 

the map is proposed except for the two bleachers and the fence for the baseball backup and the 

dugouts themselves, and the baseball field is there.  There’s a field hockey field there, but nothing 

no permanent structures.  The Connector Trail, on the right, we just finished.  The last time the 

Engineer, Scott Mease, was there, it wasn’t paved.  The existing entryway they have that they get 

their equipment, carts, lawnmowers down to cut the baseball field, so we are going to use that and 

continue the path.  For now we are going to do it exactly like the Rail Trail - ballast stone and then 

screening or modified stone on top.  The more natural look would fit in better in an outdoor 

classroom.   

 

Mr. Spirk said the last time he was here, we talked about pervious concrete or pervious asphalt, but 

in fact, it was done in impervious asphalt.  He talked to some of the Planners and Roger Rasich and 

the reason was the ground is so wet, they were afraid it was going to percolate up through it.  We 

are not going to do those as it’s even wet on this side of the road.  We’re going to leave it in the 

stone like the Rail Trail.  What Scott Mease is doing is he’s putting a series of drainage pipe 

underneath or in the stone to try to alleviate any hydraulic pressure coming up or cross pressure 

through the thing.  The ultimate thing is it will be somewhat impervious in stone.  First of all, the  

 

 



Environmental Advisory Council 

May 8, 2012  

 

Page 3 of 11 

entire path is ADA compliant, and that’s important to a school district.  You have to be ADA 

compliant with anything you do in the school district.   

 

Mr. Spirk said he’s with the Foundation and the Foundation is basically a non-profit organization 

and a hyper PTA.  They are funding all of this.  He’s a volunteer and the only one that’s not a 

volunteer is Scott Mease, the Engineer, who they are paying to do this plan.   

 

Mr. Spirk said the idea is we’re going to put this in using outside funds and he believes that IESI is 

going to donate all the stone for the path, which is a significant number.  It’s probably at least 

$10,000.00 to $20,000.00 of stone.  He wanted to mention that good will that IESI is putting forth.   

 

Mr. Spirk said they are contemplating some restrooms and other than the path, the network of 

wildflower fields, butterfly gardens, and solar research are going to be years and years in the 

making.  We want the students to play a big part in making this outdoor classroom, so that’s going 

to go fairly slow.   

 

Mr. Spirk said we’d like to put the path in this summer.  There are two pavilions proposed.  The 

one pavilion is at the beginning of the path, a 20’x40’ rectangular.  Just as you get past the baseball 

field, there’s another pavilion.  There is a proposed restroom and he’s sure you know they are 

trying to put composting toilets at Heller Homestead and the Trail Head for the SRT out on 

Reading Road.  They are considering a composting toilet here.  The thought is if they bring down a 

couple of classrooms of children every hour, sooner or later, one of them is going to have to use a 

bathroom.  The composting toilets may be another interesting educational experience.   

 

Mr. Spirk said that’s the whole jest of the endeavor here; just to start learning about nature and 

what we as good citizens have to do to preserve this nature.  In addition to the trail, and networks 

of these things, we are going to enhance the path as there’s going to be a wetland study area, a 

riparian buffer enhancement area, riparian habitat enhancement area, and the path that goes south 

from the main path, there will be a little walk bridge over the Polk Valley Run, so that the children 

can get to the other side.  There’s a plan to continue the agricultural park on the other side, planting 

corn, that sort of thing, so they can take part in at least recognizing what’s going on there.  The 

other side has greater riparian buffer areas because it’s so close to the agricultural area.   

 

Mr. Spirk said it’s his plan to keep this group informed of what they were doing, assuming that this 

sort of thing is closer to your goals here than many other committees of the Township.   

 

Mr. Hijazi said is this something the school district is doing?  Mr. Spirk said the Biology 

Department run by Lance Lenhart, who’s been there probably 20 years.  He’s a biologist, and a 

Lehigh graduate.  He would constantly take his students down and they would observe the aquatic 

life, observe the life just outside of the creek bed, as well as the plant life.  This is a more formal 

way to do it, and this is a way to get the youngest of students down there as well.  He could only 

take high school students down and do that because there was no path.  It’s fairly tough to walk 

down there.   

 

Mr. Spirk said the Assistant Superintendent, Carl Atkinson, has been a big proponent of this for a 

few years.  He helped and it was a big part of the last school district he was at where they put one 

in.  He saw this could be done and he convinced some others in the community.   

 

Mr. Spirk said the Foundation wasn’t necessarily put together just for this, but this is going to be 

easily one of the biggest thing the Foundation does.  They have funded quite a few projects around 

the school.  This is going to be a big one.  They are hoping to engage a lot of the community and 

ask for a lot of physical donation as well as some money.  He’s been talking to Hellertown 

Borough similar to how he’s addressing this group.  The Foundation is a big group, maybe 40 to 50 



Environmental Advisory Council 

May 8, 2012  

 

Page 4 of 11 

members.  They are trying to gauge as many people as possible.  Ultimately, they want to set the 

framework up and have the students take out the invasives, things like that and plant the deciduous.   

 

Mr. Spirk said he has contacted Larry Weiner, who put in the wildflower meadow at Southeastern 

Park.  Larry will probably be involved in some capacity.  He asked Ms. Stern Goldstein to help out 

and he’s assuming she will in some capacity, if nothing else, some guidance.  Ultimately, what he’s 

hoping this group could help with, is go out there, if not with the students, maybe weekend groups, 

summer groups, and say that has to be removed, and that stays - just some guidance in that 

direction.  You have some amount of experience right across the street on the other side of the 

bridge.  This group enhanced those riparian buffers.  It’s a project similar to that but in much 

greater scope.   

 

Mr. Spirk said all along mostly the southern end of the path, we are going to have different 

meadows with different plant life and different study areas.  The storm water basin, which is the 

basin for most of the campus, is going to be turned into a wildflower meadow.  At Southeastern 

Park, that took nine years in the making and it may not even be complete.  Mrs. Yerger said it takes 

three to four years minimum to look like something.  Mr. Spirk said when Mr. Weiner came in and 

we asked how long it would take, he said nine years to look really good.  Mrs. Yerger said we have 

to get the neighbor to stop mowing it.  Mr. Spirk said that was a bit of a problem there at first. You 

think it’s just weeds growing.  It’s going to be a long process and he doesn’t think anybody cares 

about that part.  It’s an experience for the students to see something happen and the students now 

will have a different experience than those five years from now.   

 

Mrs. Yerger said there’s a ton of Multiflora there.  That’s not easily removed, short of a bulldozer.  

Mr. Spirk said they talked about that and this is where we need a lot of guidance or we just have 

somebody else do it.  Mrs. Yerger said what you can hope for is the blight shows up that is killing 

it.  You can go and find where it’s already attacked and bring some back as she’s told you can 

transmit it.  Find an area of infected Multiflora and throw some of it in there, and you can spread 

the infection.  It’s some kind of little mite.  Mr. Spirk said another thing they are worried about, 

you tear it out and you have to plant something there.  Mrs. Yerger said you have to replace it right 

away.  If you don’t hold those banks and you get any kind of heavy rains, then you’ve defeated 

your purpose almost.  You have to do it in sections as some of those bushes are pretty substantial.  

You are going to have to remove and replace at the same time.  That’s going to be your challenge.   

 

Mr. Spirk said we have a lot of well intention and volunteers.  Mrs. Yerger said she thinks it’s 

great.  It’s just a matter of planning and timing it out as it is what it is. She asked if they have you 

gotten grant money for this?  Mr. Spirk said they have gotten some grant money.  He’s the lead of 

the Implementation Committee and there are many committees in the Foundation.  There’s also a 

Grant and Fundraising Committee s well.  He said they would like to go down the entire way next 

to the creek basically down to the Springhill Shopping Center somewhere into Main Street and 

somehow connect into the SRT.  That’s the ultimate goal.  Across the street, is the park which is 

contiguous to the Compost Center, so it would be nice to make it one big nature area.  He thinks 

that’s the thing they talked about at the ribbon cutting at the Connector Trail.  It’s just one more 

way of joining everything together.  Mrs. Yerger said way back when we purchased Polk Valley 

Park, that’s what we considered.  Even though it wasn’t the flattest piece of land in the Township, 

it was the right size, and it was available, and it was right across the street from the school.  Mr. 

Spirk said it’s great for the kids.  Mrs. Yerger said it’s used a lot.  Mr. Spirk said he’s seen tons and 

tons of games there.  His kids have played there a lot, and it’s one of the greatest vistas around.  

Mrs. Yerger said that was one of the biggest selling points.   

 

Mrs. Yerger said she assumes the trail is going to go in first?  Mr. Spirk said they expect some time 

in June to get the general permit from DEP.  It’s not a great deal, but the biggest permitting issue 

they have is the little bridge, so it’s going to be a similar situation the Township just went through 

for the other bridge.  They don’t anticipate much trouble from this Zoning Office.  There are two 



Environmental Advisory Council 

May 8, 2012  

 

Page 5 of 11 

pavilions proposed.  They’d like to get the trail in July or August when it’s still pretty warm, and 

the soils may be dry.  Hopefully we can get in without a lot of wet summer months.  That’s their 

goal.   

 

Mr. Johnson asked if this will be open for use by the public?  Mr. Spirk said ultimately at the 

school district, you can walk around there at any time.  He’s talked to the Police, Head of Facilities, 

and the Superintendent, and they would like to see it connected to other trails so people are going 

to walk through.  What they don’t want to see are the kids at night at the two pavilions.  They are 

now talking about bringing electricity and water to the area, so they can have some lights at night 

and when the Police drive by at night, they can check it out.  It’s similar to the park.  They 

constantly have issues in the park.  If you remember at Steel City, they cut apart the play area.  

Someone took a reciprocating saw and cut some of the swings sets.  Mrs. Yerger said that one has a 

lot of houses in close proximity to it.   

 

Mr. Spirk said there are committees in the school made up of teachers and students and they are 

eager to start bringing their classrooms down there.  They only meet one hour or 45 minutes at a 

time, but they are just looking forward to bringing them down there.   

 

Ms. Ray said why don’t they take the kids in detention and make them do something constructive.  

Mr. Spirk said that sounds like a good idea, but you are going to have parents saying my child isn’t 

going to do physical labor.   

 

Mr. Beardsley said how do you see the pavilions being used?  Mr. Spirk said he would assume they 

walk the children down when the bell rings, and they give them instructions, handouts, look for this 

plant life, look for this.  The pavilions are for instruction, a launching point for the class for the 

day.  They will have multiple classrooms down there.  The window of the school year is not great 

to be down there.  Even if it’s temperature wise a good day, it may be raining.  They talked about it 

with the head of Facilities about clearing the path in the snow and he said they are already thinking 

about that sort of thing.  There is something to investigate all year long.   

 

Mr. Spirk said they already put bird houses up.  The Wassergass Bushmen replaced the Blue Bird 

houses.  The Bushmen made them.  The Blue Bird houses must be at a fairly specific height from 

the ground.  Mrs. Yerger said they prefer facing in certain directions and not too close together.  

Mr. Spirk said they used some of the posts over again, but they did put some new posts in.  Mrs. 

Yerger said she has a Kestrel box if you would like it.  With the farm field and the openness of a 

meadow, you might attract Kestrel’s in a couple of years.  It has to be fairly high on a pole.  They 

like it much higher than a Blue Bird.  It would have to be like a utility pole, something like that.  

Mr. Spirk said they put the Blue Bird posts in 5-gallon buckets in concrete so they can dig them 

back up and move them more appropriate once the put the meadows and paths in.  Mrs. Yerger said 

the Kestrel’s are a neat looking bird.  You would need to get someone to install it. They are getting 

a lot of offers like Mrs. Yerger’s.  They could do this or you can have this.   

 

Mr. Spirk said it’s been a pretty fun experience for him and the people involved.  Ultimately, we 

have to do the hard construction of the path first.   

 

Mr. Johnson said this would be a good place to put solar panels in to collect sunlight for electricity 

and then you could store it in a battery and use it to run your lights at night.  You wouldn’t have to 

run power all the way down.  They could just put them on top of the pavilions.  That’s a very 

interesting idea.  They only need like a 30 amp circuit.  Mrs. Yerger said you can put them on a 

timer where they shut down at 2 AM.  Mr. Spirk said that’s a great idea.   

 

Mr. Spirk said they never had anything like this in their school or even went outside.  We’re 

blessed that we have an actual creek running through the property.  When they made the plan up 

for the entire campus, they stopped at the edge of the baseball fields.  Even the Planners at that time 



Environmental Advisory Council 

May 8, 2012  

 

Page 6 of 11 

viewed that as wasteland, you can’t do anything with it, as opposed to something that you could 

really build on and use as a tool to educate.  They will be putting picnic tables under the pavilions.  

They will all be attached and will be heavy that they are hard to move around.   

 

Mrs. Yerger asked Mr. Spirk to keep us posted.  Mr. Spirk said he’ll come back again and keep 

asking for help. 

 

B. DISCUSSION WITH TOM DITTMAR – NORTHAMPTON COUNTY RECYCLING 

COORDINATOR 

 

Mr. Thomas Dittmar said for the past four years, he’s been trying to get people in Northampton 

County to recycle.  He’s happy to see when AERC came in last year and did your event, the figures 

he got was over 5 tons, so they did a great job.  He wants to know next year when you plan your 

event so they can put it on their flyer for the listings.  They get it out to everyone in Northampton 

County.  He has four scheduled this year.   

 

Mr. Dittmar said he sees the LST recycling event is on October 13, and he will come down that 

day.  He has his first one coming up on May 19
th
 at Easton High School.  He is anticipating this 

year of collecting over 200,000 lbs. of electronics since there is no charge.  They are hoping to get 

those lead TV’s out of the landfills.  As of January next year, it will be illegal for residents to put 

TV’s and electronic gear in their trash.  It will be illegal for the haulers to pick it up.  That will be a 

State law.  Why in PA does it take two to four years to have this become illegal where in NJ it was 

90 days after they passed the law, it was illegal.  They saw TV’s coming over to PA and ending up 

in people’s trash this past year.  He’s gone to some of the municipalities and told them to not have 

their haulers pick the TV’s up.   

 

Mr. Dittmar said they are doing the events all free this year.  The only charge is 75 cents a pound 

for batteries and 25 cents for each fluorescent bulb.   

 

Mr. Dittmar said the one question he has is he wants to know, do you want to do air conditioners, 

dehumidifiers, freezers and refrigerators also at no charge?  Ms. Palik said she talked to Bonnie 

Swaverly at AERC and they were going to charge $10.00.  Mr. Dittmar said he can get someone to 

do it at no charge.  He will talk to the guy and see if he will come down here.  They are anticipating 

at least one or two 30 yard containers on May 19
th
.  They are doing two large events at Moore 

Township, and Weaversville Road, and they are doing them for nothing.  If you see it as a benefit 

for you, he will talk to the guy and get back to Mrs. Yerger.  Where he makes his money is he has a 

guy come in and remove the Freon for nothing.  The guy makes his money off the Freon. Then he 

separates all the copper and the aluminum and the scrap is 8 cents a pound, but the copper and 

aluminum is where he’s making his money.  If he’s picking up at least one or two 30 yard 

containers full at one of his events, he’s going to make a nice chunk of money out of that.   

 

Mr. Johnson said they just dump the refrigerators in a container?  Mr. Dittmar said they put them in 

the 30 yard container.  They have to put everything in correctly, you can’t just throw them in the 

container.  They will have someone here to do that.  The back door of the container is open and 

they put the air conditioners, dehumidifiers, refrigerators, and freezers in.  They will put it in by 

hand or with a hand truck.  Last year they picked up 16,000 lbs. at one event.  Mr. Johnson said as 

long as someone else does it.  Mrs. Yerger said she would say as long as they come, they handle it 

correctly, she’s all for that.  If that’s okay, then yes.  Mr. Dittmar said he will talk to him and see if 

he’s interested.  Mrs. Yerger said if he is interested, let her know and they can make an official 

recommendation next month.   

 

Mr. Hijazi said he’s not sure how this would interact with PPL, don’t they have a program?  Mr. 

Dittmar said they have a program, but it has to be a working refrigerator or air conditioner and they 

will pay you.  Last year they took refrigerators, dehumidifiers, freezers and air conditioners up in 



Environmental Advisory Council 

May 8, 2012  

 

Page 7 of 11 

Washington Township.  You wouldn’t have believed the ones that came out of the woodwork.  His 

truck was full and a 12’ trailer was full.  Some of the air conditioners and refrigerators looked like 

they came out of the fields and were just sitting there with the mice and all.  At least they got them 

out of there and they are not leaching back into our drinking water, and that’s what he wanted to 

see.   

 

Mrs. Yerger said one of our bigger issues is tires.  They are still dumping them on roadsides.  Not 

as badly, but there are areas where there are tires and she’s been informed there is a property along 

a creek that has a substantial amount of tires, and the landowner is not opposed to having someone 

else come in and remove them, but he’s not going to pay to have it done.  Mr. Beardsley said he 

has a bunch of tires he’d like to get rid of.  Mrs. Yerger said is there some way to do this?  Mr. 

Dittmar said there’s a discussion of doing a tire collection this year with a charge.  Mrs. Yerger 

said she knows Springfield Township does it.  Mr. Dittmar said he has talked to all the counties 

around us about tire collection and they say you need to charge.  Otherwise, you are going to have 

these people going to the stores and say they’ll take them away at a cheap price, then they will 

bring them there and drop them off for nothing and make their money and we’re stuck with the 

whole headache.  Lafarge told them they would take them and grind them up and burn them.  They 

have good solid scrubbers in there.  He’s looked at their system.  He’d rather see it used as 

playground mulch.  In order for him to do that, he’s looking at a couple thousand dollars for a 

trailer load to be ground up.  There’s a company in NJ that grinds them up, separates the steel and 

uses them as playground mulch.  Mrs. Yerger said wasn’t there concerns about that where 

eventually it breaks down and contaminates the soil?  Mr. Dittmar said yes, it can.  Mrs. Yerger 

said they were using it in riding rings and were having problems in some of the riding rings as they 

were some of the first ones to use that and were finding out it was contaminating the soil.  Then 

they had to get the soil removed.  Mr. Dittmar said as long as the company is running a good solid 

scrubber system on it, that is constantly monitoring them, burning them for fuel is probably the 

safest way if it’s done correctly.  If it’s not done correctly, you are right.  In Florida when they have 

a frost come along, they take the tires and just burn them for the smoke to keep the frost out of the 

area.  There’s no simple way.  So far, Lafarge is the best place around here.  They offered to bring 

in a container.  His problem for not doing a tire collection or not scheduling one yet is labor.  He’s 

going to need people to help out as he can’t do it alone.  He’s going to always be looking for the 

EAC Committees to say hey, I need a helping hand, we’re going to do this program.  He wants to 

try one this year and if it works out, most likely he would be using Northampton Community 

College again as it’s the safest parking lot in the summer months where you have a good traffic 

through plus he has connections there.  They’ve been a big benefit for us to do programs at the 

College and that’s what he’s thinking about.  Until he has a workforce of at least 10 to 12 people, 

he’s not going to do it.  He needs to load a trailer up and say that trailer can be gone.  Mr. Johnson 

said some of the tires are still on rims.  Mr. Dittmar said Lafarge wants them off the rims, but he’s 

talked to a scrap metal hauler, and he would take them off the rim at no charge in exchange for the 

rims.  You are negotiating.  He’s going to make his money off the rims and he’s going to separate it 

for us.  They want them clean, not full of mud.  Mr. Beardsley said there’s a lady in Easton or 

Wilson, a scrap metal place, they collect small metal objects and give half the money to Diabetes 

Research and another non-profit.  Mr. Dittmar said he was Manager for Lucent Technologies at 

their Whippany facility, they collected so many aluminum cans that they filed up a 22’ trailer at 

twice a year.  They got $8,000.00 from their aluminum can collection and they donated to 

Tomorrow’s Children Fund over in NJ.  Their Murray Hill facility donated to a burn center.  That’s 

a good way to go.  It’s cleaning up the environment and what everyone is giving you is benefiting 

more and it’s PR at the same time.  If you can make money on something on a program, it’s good 

to donate it to an organization.  Mrs. Yerger said the Lions collect once a month in the bank 

parking lot and they put it to their scholarship fund.  Mr. Dittmar said the tires he wants to do.  Has 

he set a date?  No.  He needs volunteers.   

 

Mr. Dittmar said there are 902 grants going out and it’s available.  He sent out an email a couple of 

months ago.  The DEP opened it up.  Anyone who is interested in the 902 needs to get a hold of 



Environmental Advisory Council 

May 8, 2012  

 

Page 8 of 11 

him. It’s going to be first considered the municipalities that have been mandated now because of 

their population growth.  There are three of them in Northampton County.  Williams Township is 

one of them as well as Bushkill Township and Upper Nazareth which are mandated.  There’s only 

$250,000.00 per issuing of each grant for each municipality.  There’s only $28 million to go across 

the whole State of PA and there’s 40 municipalities in the State of PA that have now become 

mandated to recycle. That does not mean that nobody is going to get it. He knows a couple will be 

applying for it.  The FRC is going to apply for it.  There’s a lot out there.  It’s been four years since 

the last 902 grant came out.   

 

Mr. Dittmar said there is a Household Hazardous Waste event on October 6
th
.  He will be looking 

for volunteers for traffic control that day at Northampton Community College.  Last year they had 

about 1,200 cars go through there and collected over 116,000 lbs. of household hazardous waste.  

His goal is to get 2,000 cars to run through there.  Please pass the word around. It’s for 

Northampton County residents.  It costs him about $80,000.00 for that one day event.  You can 

bring anything but they do not take Latex paints.  Everything else they will take.  You name it, they 

take it.  They collect so much motor oil.  He had Hazleton oil there a couple of years ago and it 

filled up their container in two hours time.  They left a mess and he won’t use them again.   

 

Mr. Hijazi said he got asked about oil, where can he take it?  Mr. Dittmar said there’s a lot of auto 

stores that will take it, but if not, save it and bring it to the Hazardous Household Waste event and 

they will take it and get rid of it the correct way.  Pass the word around, if anyone can help, let him 

know.  He’s trying to make it to all the EAC’s in the County.  If you can spend an hour, that would 

be fine.  No one handles any of the materials; you just handle with the traffic flow, and to ask that 

they verify they are Northampton County residents.  The other municipality’s events, the EAC’s 

are helping out at those.  For Easton, there are two EAC’s helping out.    

 

Mr. Dittmar said if you have any other ideas of programs besides the tire collections let him know.  

You can also check with Sam over at IESI.  Sometimes they need tires when they are covering their 

landfill.  They might be able to take them, but check ahead of time.   

 

Mr. Dittmar said he’s trying to pull the municipalities and EAC’s together to do more programs so 

that people know what’s going on.  Mr. Johnson said yard waste is pretty much taken care of.  Mr. 

Dittmar said to a degree.  There’s been discussion about seeing if we could get a County-wide yard 

waste program, but look at the size of Northampton County.  Where would it be to be advantageous 

to everyone?  In Jersey, most of the Counties do run county-wide waste yard facilities, but where 

do we have one around here that would work?  He doesn’t see one.  A lot of the municipalities 

have joined together, and that’s nice to see that to do the yard waste together.  Mrs. Yerger said 

that’s what they did, they went with Hellertown.   

 

Mr. Dittmar said he tried 14 years ago to get five municipalities together to buy a tub grinder and it 

would have only cost them each $5,000.00 and they couldn’t decide who was going to store it, so 

they lost all that grant money on that program, but that’s the way to do it and that’s what DEP is 

looking at ventures where you get more than one area together in a program like that.  The tub 

grinders are $250,000.00 plus now.   

 

Mr. Hijazi asked if the Household Hazardous done once a year?  Mr. Dittmar said he’s been doing 

it once a year, on Columbus weekend.  Mr. Hijazi said what about another one?  Mr. Dittmar said 

he’d like to do it more than once a year but at $86,000.00 for him to tell the County and say that the 

resident is going to have to increase their taxes, they are not going to do that right now.  They keep 

negotiating with the companies to get the prices cheaper and cheaper and cheaper and if they can, 

really in the long run, he’d like to have a permanent site where they could do it monthly.  That way 

he would reduce the volume.  Lehigh County didn’t do one last year and they aren’t doing one this 

year.  It’s just such an expensive program.  The Household Hazardous Waste costs $86,000.00 and 

takes months of planning to be able to do it.  He ran 1,200 cars through last year, so you have to 



Environmental Advisory Council 

May 8, 2012  

 

Page 9 of 11 

have a big enough parking lot.  They are there on Friday night laying out a safe area to meet DEP’s 

requirements.  He has to apply now for the permit to them just to do this event.  PCS 

Environmental is who they deal with right now and they break it all down.  Some of it will actually 

go in to be burned.  There was a pill collection the other week and all those pills go to an 

incineration program to be burned.  He will see everyone in October to see how your program is 

going.  He wants to start planning with you in December so that when he puts his brochure together 

in January, that they will have you on it next year.   

 

Mrs. Yerger said you will let us know about the refrigerators.  Mr. Dittmar said he will check with 

them and give her a call.  Mr. Johnson said it might be good if we could establish a separate area.  

Mrs. Yerger said she was thinking out back.  Mr. Dittmar said when they come in, you have a sign 

saying refrigerator, air conditioner items, and then another sign with electronics.  Mr. Hijazi asked 

if there was a limit to the size of a TV?  Mr. Dittmar said there is no limit to the size of TV’s.   

 

Mr. Dittmar asked if anyone has ever been to AERC’s site?  They are over on Mitchell Avenue.  

The group said no.  Mr. Dittmar said at AERC they actually crush the fluorescent bulbs and they 

evacuate everything. It goes into a cooker where it cooks the fluorescent bulbs and they evaporate 

the mercury and then they capture the mercury.  It’s a real nice process they have right there.  

Whatever he can do for them, just holler.  Mrs. Yerger said everyone has been very supportive and 

well received by the residents.  Mr. Dittmar said when he sees the minutes, and sees the way the 

programs have been done, he thinks it’s excellent.  Mrs. Yerger said they’ve had a lot of support in 

most of their programs, especially this one.   

 

C. GIS LICENSE FOR EAC AND OTHER TOWNSHIP USERS 

 

Mr. Johnson said we talk about the places we go to visit to do our open space investigations and it 

would be nice if we could show a Google Earth view of the land from above.  In order to do that, 

we’d have to have a laptop computer with Google Earth on it and then we could project it on the 

screen here and everyone could see it and could use a pointer to talk about the different properties.  

That’s what he was thinking of.  Everybody can use Google Earth at home as it’s free.  There’s a 

Google Earth Pro that’s about $400.00 a year and it’s nice as you can calculate areas.  That’s like 

the simple way to go.  There’s also Arc View which Mr. Germanoski probably knows a lot about.  

It’s $1,500.00 for a single license.  Mr. Germanoski said you can get group discounts.  They get a 

special discount at the school as they want people going out there versed in the software.  The 

educational discount is significant.  Mr. Hijazi said how much does the GIS cost us here?  Mr. 

Johnson said he thinks Chris Garges has Arc View.  Mrs. Yerger said she would think he would.  

Mr. Germanoski said from what he gathers, Chris Garges pulls the LVPC and the County maps and 

has access.  Mrs. Yerger said the Conservancy has GIS stuff.  She doesn’t know what it costs, but 

she knows it didn’t cost $1,500.00.  Ms. Ray said if Chris Garges has a license, he doesn’t sit at his 

desk working at night while we have our meetings, so we could somehow be able to show 

something on the screen here.  Mrs. Yerger said let her see how they mesh it at the Conservancy.  

They go out with GIS.  Mr. Johnson said it’s much more difficult to use Arc View.  The only place 

you’d be able to use it would be in here.  He did see on the Internet there’s a program you can use 

at home for $100.00 a year.  It’s really a steep learning curve for Arc View.  If we could get a 

laptop with a copy of Google Earth Pro on it, that would be good.  Everyone can learn to use 

Google Earth at home and then if they want to come in here and do something on the laptop, they 

can make a presentation.  Mr. Germanoski said he thinks that would be good.  He doesn’t know 

what the possibilities are, but where he works, they go through computers like candy.  He doesn’t 

know what they do with them, but he’ll get his computer replaced well before it’s useless.  He can 

check with people there and see what it would cost.  It may not come to fruition, but it won’t hurt 

to find out.  Mrs. Yerger said okay.  That’s very nice, thank you.  She said they have systems that 

feed in, and she knows it’s not expensive, so let her see how it’s done at work. They run the maps 

so let her see how it all coordinates.  Let’s see what Mr. Germanoski comes up and see what she 

can find out at the Conservancy, and this will be brought back to the June meeting.   



Environmental Advisory Council 

May 8, 2012  

 

Page 10 of 11 

IV. DEVELOPER ITEMS – None  
 

V. UPDATES/REPORTS 
 

A. UPDATE ON EAC ADOPT-A-ROAD CLEAN-UP HELD ON APRIL 29, 2012 
 

Mrs. Yerger thanked all who were able to come.  It was pretty clean.  They got two bags of 

recycled and two bags of trash.  It went a little over an hour.  It was a nice day and it went fast.  

They will pick a date in October for the next clean-up which they will talk about at the next 

meeting. 

 

B. NATIVE PLANT SALE – SUNDAY, MAY 13, 2012 – SV FARMERS MARKET 

 

Mrs. Yerger said Terry Boos will be picking up plants on Thursday, weather-permitting.  They will 

be at the Farmer’s Market.  She doesn’t know what he’s picking up.  Mr. Johnson said he bought 

three plants last year and his blueberry bush is doing great.  Mrs. Yerger said she bought some 

plants, and they are doing very well.  The upside to native plants is they belong here, and most of 

them are PA natives.  They don’t need a lot of fertilizers and they seem to take the drought and the 

weather changing really well. 

 

C. AERC RECYCLING EVENT – SATURDAY, OCTOBER 13, 2012 – 9 AM TO NOON 
 

Mrs. Yerger said you have a copy of flyer.  We will wait and see what Tom Dittmar comes up with 

the refrigerators, so we may have to add this on our flyer.  We’ll know what happens by next 

month and then we’ll be able to circulate the flyers. 

 

VI. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 

A. REVIEW AND APPROVAL OF MARCH 13, 2012 MINUTES 

 

Tabled until June 12, 2012 meeting as Mr. Maxfield was not present again and he spoke a lot at the 

March meeting. 

 

B. REVIEW AND APPROVAL OF APRIL 10, 2012 MINUTES 

 

Mr. Johnson said page 7 of 11, line 46 should say “several hours at a time”.  Page 8 of 11, line 15, 

the second sentence should be “It could be 100”.  Line 34, should read “Whether you buy a 

concrete monument, that’s 4’ above the ground or 8” above.  With one that sticks up 4’, you aren’t 

going to run into it with a mowing machine.  Line 50 the first word should be at. 

 

MOTION BY: Mr. Beardsley moved for approval of the April 10, 2012 minutes, with corrections. 

SECOND BY: Mr. Johnson 

ROLL CALL: 4-0 (Mr. Maxfield, Mr. Guerra and Mr. McCormick – Absent) 

 

VII. OLD/MISCELLANEOUS BUSINESS – None 

 

VIII. TERRY BOOS – HELLERTOWN REPRESENTATIVE – REPORT – Absent  

 

IX. NON-AGENDA ITEM  

 

 Mrs. Yerger said we got emails of the Dravecz Property Natural Areas Stewardship Report where a 

couple of you walked the evaluation of the stewardship.  This was their recommendations and 

evaluations of it.  She doesn’t know if everyone got a chance to look at it.  Mr. Hijazi said is this 

online?  Ms. Ray said we all got it electronically.  It was a separate email.  Mrs. Yerger will email 

the color copy to Diane and she can email it to Mr. Johnson.  It’s a pretty standard approach how to 



Environmental Advisory Council 

May 8, 2012  

 

Page 11 of 11 

deal with most of it.  Mr. Johnson said they found two vernal ponds on the property and a spring 

fed stream.  There is lots of good stuff out there.  Ms. Ray said are we allowed to walk around on it 

yet?  Mrs. Yerger said no, that hasn’t been established yet and we need to get that established 

through Council.  Mr. Hijazi said how does it get established?  Mrs. Yerger said there was a 

hunting issue on when to allow people when to walk during hunting season because it abuts a lot of 

woodlands.  There was a metes and bounds issue which she doesn’t think has been resolved.  Mr. 

Johnson said we are working on it.  Mrs. Yerger said the engineers are working on that, and once 

that gets resolved, we can see what will happen.  She has no problem recommending Council adopt 

it as a management plan.  Mr. Johnson said in it, they recommend deer hunting.  Mrs. Yerger said 

controlled.  Mr. Johnson said if we were going to do deer hunting on the Dravecz property, it 

should be archery only.  Mrs. Yerger said it’s a controlled hunt.  Mr. Johnson said we should have 

signs telling people when they can deer hunt and when they can’t.  Mrs. Yerger said one of the 

things that a lot of the Townships have done is they go through like a club or official group that is 

certified.  Upper Makefield does it, they do it at Fairmont Park and a couple of other places. One of 

the groups up here in the Quakertown area is called the Ecologists.  They are a hunting group, but 

they go out only and they are cross bow.  They have to have a certain skill level so they are not 

sticking arrows in people’s houses and shooting people’s cows.  That’s the other issue.  Tom 

Maxfield had an arrow in his barn.  It’s something we may want to ask Council to look into and 

look at how a controlled hunt should be on property.  She’s not opposed to a controlled hunt.  We 

have Ecologists on some of the Conservancy owned properties and we can trust them, we know 

what they are going to be doing and what they are not going to be doing.  They stay within the 

property lines and so far they’ve been using them for three to four years and they’ve had no issues.  

She will find out what the parameters are on a controlled hunt like that.  She knows Valley Forge is 

using them now.  Their deer population is so big, they are actually sick.  She will see what the 

criteria is and see what is involved.  She said we will put this on the agenda for next month, so 

please everyone look at it. 

 

X. PUBLIC COMMENT – None 

 

XI. ADJOURNMENT 

 

MOTION BY: Ms. Ray moved for adjournment.  The time was 8:35 PM. 

SECOND BY: Mr. Beardsley 

ROLL CALL: 4-0 (Mr. Guerra, Mr. Maxfield and Mr. McCormick – Absent) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

___________________________ 

Sandra Yerger, Chair 


